


























City of Portsmouth 
Zoning Board of Adjustment 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 

RE: Variance Application of 268 Dennett Street – Impacts and Concerns of 276 Dennett Street 

 

Dear Portsmouth Zoning Board, 

 

In addition to the legal implications set forth by our attorney, Mr. McEachern, my wife and I had a few 
additional concerns in regards to the variance application submitted by our neighbors at 268 Dennett 
Street that we wanted to share with the Board in which we believe the Board should consider in not 
approving this variance. We have highlighted our concerns below.  

 

I. The maintenance easement that is currently in place with 268 Dennett Street is inaccurately 
referenced within Mr. Durbin’s variance application to the City. 

a. The variance application submitted by Mr. Durbin on behalf of Mike Petrin equates the 
existing maintenance easement as that of an 8’side lot setback. We don’t find that to be 
the case. It was our intent and understanding when we bought our property that the 
maintenance easement was for maintaining or improving the building as it currently 
exists and does not support the demolition and reconstruction of a 2 story - let alone 3+ 
story - building in its place. Attached Exhibit 1 showcases what currently exists today 
and the wording of the easement was very purposeful as to avoid a situation just like this.  
 

II. Granting the variance would diminish the value of our property and create unnecessary hardships 
to our family: 

a. The raising of the Applicants home without properly enforcing the City’s side yard 
setback requirements would have a direct impact on the natural sunlight and airflow on 
the eastern side of our property. Throughout a good portion of the morning, most of our 
eastern side of our home and side yard is under a large shadow created by the Applicant’s 
home as it sits today. By increasing the height of the structure without adjusting the 
setback, the shadows created will both be larger and last longer throughout the morning, 
thus reducing the sunlight and airflow on our property 

 
b. Having a massive structure in which the Applicant is proposing directly on our property 

line would create additional safety issues on our property. Not only would the 
construction of the proposed structure greatly impact our yard where our child plays 
extensively throughout the year, but the lasting impact of having a structure directly 
along our property is not ideal and defies the whole intent of requiring side setbacks. In 
addition, the proposed third floor deck arrangement creates numerous potential safety 
issues regarding the potential for falling objects, melting snow, etc. In addition, the 
proposed third floor deck which would directly overlook both our side and backyard, thus 
creating privacy issues on our property. Having this massive structure adjacent to our 



small yard where our child (and soon to be children) play would make us feel even more 
uncomfortable than we currently do today, given the close proximately of their house to 
our yard. 
 

c. Approval of this variance would create unneeded restrictions on any future plans we 
would have to build an addition on the eastern facing side of our property, within our 
allowable property. We currently have roughly 12’ of property within our setback 
requirement to potentially build an addition in the future off of the eastern side of our 
property.  By approving this application, this would undoubtedly make us reconsider our 
options to make our own additions. 
 

d. The excess roof runoff the proposed building would undoubtedly create that would 
eventually flow on our property compared today’s structure would be significantly 
greater than the existing condition. As it sits today, roughly 21% of their roof runoff 
currently outfalls and flows directly onto our property through a failed gutter system that 
is currently on their structure, which is not ideal but we’ve learned to live with this 
inconvenience. With the proposed arrangement, assuming gutters are added to the 
structure using general industry locations, it appears that number would increase – by my 
calculations - to roughly 70% of their roof that would most likely outfall onto or near our 
property line. This is an increase of roughly 738 SF of impervious area. These 
calculations are shown on Exhibit 2 of this document. Since our backyard currently sits 
on a low spot of our surrounding neighbors, including 268 Dennett St., our backyard 
often floods with even a nominal rain. Pictures of the low area of my yard during a 
roughly 1” rainfall along with a photo of the current gutter system in place at 268 Dennett 
St. can be found on Exhibit 3 of this document. By adding this additional runoff, this 
would only make our flooding issue worse and create what I would consider to be an 
unnecessary hardship.  

 

All of these factors will have a significant negative impact on the value of our property.  

It is not our intent to stop the Applicant from improving their home – it’s actually the opposite as we 
welcome that; however, it’s the proposed design and the lack of separation between properties that creates 
major concerns for our family. We feel very strongly that any reconstruction should comply with all 
current City ordinances. By increasing the height of their structure and not adjusting the structure directly 
off of our property line, it will only lead to additional issues down the road. This is an opportunity to fix 
the issues that exist today, not make them worse.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Steigerwalt, P. E. and Anne Shiembob 
Home Owners of 276 Dennett Street 
 
 



EXHIBIT 1
PHOTO OF 268 DENNETT AND 276 DENNETT STREET

EXISTING  268 AND 276 DENNETT STREET

EXISTNG ENCLOSED 
PORCH OF 268 

DENNETT STREET 

SMALL SIDE YARD OF 
276 DENNETT STREET



EXHIBIT 2
Impervious Roof Runoff Maps – Existing vs. Proposed

LEGEND
GUTTER DOWNSPOUT

AREA THAT DRAINS TOWARDS 
276 PROPERTY

EXISTING  BUILDING

PROPOSED  BUILDING

8’

38’-7”

38’-6”’

38’-6”

38’-7”

NOTES: 
1. Dimensions were determined from Applicants drawing, which were hard to confirm due to quality of prints found on City’s website.
2. Proposed gutter downspouts shown are based off assumptions of where they would typically be placed on a home since they were not 
shown on plans. 

TOTAL ROOF AREA:
= 38’-6”x 38’-7”
= 1,485 SF

AREA OF ROOF DRAINAGE 
TOWARDS 276 DENNETT:
= 38’-6” x 8’
= 308 SF

PERCENTAGE OF ROOF RUNOFF 
DRAINING TOWARDS 276 DENNETT:
= 308 SF / 1,485 SF * 100%
= 21%

TOTAL ROOF AREA:
= 38’-6”x 38’-7”
= 1,485 SF

AREA OF ROOF DRAINAGE 
TOWARDS 276 DENNETT:
= 38’-6” x 27’-2”
= 1,046 SF

PERCENTAGE OF ROOF RUNOFF 
DRAINING TOWARDS 276 DENNETT:
= 1,046 SF / 1,485 SF * 100%
= 70%

Difference from existing to proposed
impervious area that outfalls on 
276 property line
= 738 SF increase

Approx. 27’-2”

Outfalls on 
property line

Would outfall on 
property line

Would outfall on 
property line



EXISTING  DRAINAGE ONTO PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING 
DOWNSPOUT THAT 

FLOWS TOWARD YARD

DIRECTION OF RUNOFF FLOW

DIRECTION OF RUNOFF 
FLOW TOWARDS FLOODING

EXISTING  FLOODING ON 276 DENNETT BACK YARD

EXHIBIT 3
EXISTING FLOODING ISSUES IN 276 DENNETT ST BACK YARD



From: Alice Carey
To: Planning Info
Subject: Abutter support - 48 Hillside Drive Special Exemption
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 10:17:50 PM

Greetings Board of Adjustment - 
I am the owner of 236 Hillside Drive in Portsmouth, where I am an abutter to the property of
48 Hillside Drive, owned by Stacey and Philip Gibson. I wish to express my support for their
request for Special Exemption to allow them to keep two chickens in their backyard.

Our backyard is within direct view of the subject property, with no fences and limited visual
barriers. The Gibsons intend to have only two chickens on their property, and are doing the
right thing by seeking permission. They are responsible neighbors and maintain their property
extremely well. I have no doubt that they will be conscientious caretakers to the animals,
which will serve not only as a source of food for this family, but as an educational opportunity
for the many neighborhood children (including my own) on Hillside Drive - a welcome thing
during this time of isolation due to COVID-19 restrictions. 

I see no reason why the request for Special Exemption should not be granted to the Gibsons;
the Board should be confident in a decision to allow this use of their property.

Respectfully,
Alice Carey

Alice M. Carey, AIA LEED AP
alicemcarey@gmail.com
617.997.8947

mailto:alicemcarey@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@cityofportsmouth.com
mailto:alicemcarey@gmail.com


From: stephen gagnon
To: Planning Info
Subject: Comment for BOA Meeting on Tuesday, May 26
Date: Sunday, May 17, 2020 5:28:50 PM

To Whom It May Concern,

The purpose of this email is to support our neighbors, Stacey and Phillip Gibson, in their effort
to obtain a Special Exception from Section 10.440 Use #17.20 to allow the keeping of farm
animals where the use is permitted by special exception. This is listed as item 3 for the BOA
meeting to be held on Tuesday, May 26.

My wife and I have lived on Hillside Drive for over 20 years. The Gibsons live across the
street from us. They are a wonderful family of four who are fairly new to our neighborhood.
Their two young children are a delight. My wife and I love the idea of them obtaining two
chickens for the warmer months. 

With the current Covid-19 situation keeping families at home, we see an additional benefit for
their kids (and the other kids in our neighborhood).

Thank you in advance for allowing the Gibsons to have this special exception. We think it will
be a great addition to our neighborhood this year.

Sincerely,

Stephen and Suzy Gagnon
29 Hillside Dr, Portsmouth, NH 03801

mailto:jstepheng@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@cityofportsmouth.com


From: Art Solomonides
To: Planning Info
Cc: Karen Solomonides
Subject: Item 3 5/26/20 board of adjustment meeting
Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 7:20:03 PM

Dear Board of Adjustment Members

Concerning Item 3 which requests approval to keep chickens at 48 Hillside Dr

As long as no roosters are allowed and the number of chickens are kept at 6 or less we have no issues with this
variance

If roosters are allowed and more than 6 chickens are allowed we do not approve of the variance

If the noise becomes a nuisance in the neighborhood we would like to reserve the right to re address at a future date

Respectfully
Art and Karen Solomonides
87 Hillside Dr
Portsmouth NH 03801
603 361 6141

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:asolomonides@comcast.net
mailto:Planning@cityofportsmouth.com
mailto:ksolomonides@comcast.net
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